
 

The City of St. Ignace is an equal opportunity employer and provider.  
 

 

           
 

                CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
St. Ignace, Michigan 

Monday, January 22, 2024 – 7:00 p.m. 
City Council Chambers 

Zoom Meeting ID: 871 3288 0501 

 
 

****A G E N D A**** 
 

1) Call to Order 
2) Pledge of Allegiance 
3) Invocation 
4) Roll Call 
5) Additions to Agenda 
6) Public Comment (3-minute limit) 
7) Consideration of Minutes of January 8, 2024 
8) Business 

A. Draft 2024 Fee Schedule – Little Bear East, Marina & Golf Course Proposed 
B. 2024 Volunteer Fire Capacity Grant Program 
C. Committee Appointments 
D. City Manager MME Training 
E. Clerk Training Institute – UB Deputy Clerk 
F. Resolution 24-01 – Pond Hockey 
G. Resolution 24-03 – Non-Union Pay  
H. Election Board Approval – February 27th Presidential Primary Election 
I. Financing – Water Department Pick-Up Truck 
J. 4th of July Fireworks 
K. Treasurer’s Support Agreement 2024 
L. Financials – December 2023 

9) Consideration of Bills 
10) Public Comment (3-minute limit) 
11) City Manager Report 
12) Committee Reports 

A. Planning Commission – 2023 Annual Report 
13) Councilmember Comments 
14) Enter Closed Session: City Manager Review pursuant to MCL 15.268(a) “to consider a periodic 

personnel evaluation of a public employee if the named individual requests a closed hearing” 
 
 



City of St. Ignace 
Council Proceedings 

(Unofficial) 
 
A Regular Meeting of the St. Ignace City Council was held on Monday, January 8, 2024, in  
City Hall Council Chambers as a hybrid attendance meeting with Zoom video conference 
available.  Mayor LaLonde called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., and the Pledge of 
Allegiance followed.  Mayor Pro-Tem Gustafson led the invocation.                                         
 
PRESENT FROM CITY COUNCIL:  Councilmember Eyre, Mayor Pro-Tem Gustafson, Mayor 
LaLonde, Councilmembers Shepard and Williford. 
 
ABSENT:  Councilmembers Litzner and Pelter.  
It was moved by Mayor Pro-Tem Gustafson, seconded by Councilmember Eyre, to approve 
excusing Councilmembers Litzner and Pelter due to illness. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Marshall, City Manager; Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer; Kevin 
James, Police Chief; Cathy Lamb, Recreation Facility Manager; Nick Montie, Fire Chief; Charles 
Palmer, City Attorney. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (3-min limit) 
No public comment was received. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 18, 2023 COUNCIL MEETING: 
It was moved by Councilmember Eyre, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Gustafson, to approve the 
minutes of the December 18, 2023 Regular Council meeting as presented. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
BUSINESS 
 
A.  2024 POVERTY EXEMPTION POLICY & GUIDELINES 
 
City Manager Marshall reviewed the proposed policy and guidelines for poverty exemption 
provided by the City Assessor.  After a brief discussion, it was moved by Councilmember 
Shepard, seconded by Councilmember Eyre, to approve the policy and guidelines as presented. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:  Mayor Pro-Tem Gustafson, Mayor LaLonde, Councilmembers Shepard, Williford and 
         Eyre. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
B.  NEW LOADER FINANCING 
 
City Manager Marshall informed Council that DPW Director Fraser re-visited the financing 
request to both Central Savings and First National Bank for the new loader purchase.  The 
requested amount to be financed was $132,724 with a deposit payment of $102,500.  First 
National Bank offered a six-year loan with an interest rate of 6.25%, and Central Savings 
offered the six-year loan with an interest rate of 6.23%. 



It was moved by Councilmember Shepard, seconded by Councilmember Williford, to approve 
financing with Central Savings for the new loader purchase agreement. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:  Mayor LaLonde, Councilmembers Shepard, Williford, Eyre and Mayor Pro-Tem 
         Gustafson. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
C.  LITTLE BEAR EAST 2023 REVIEW & 2024 ROADMAP 
 
Recreation Facility Manager Lamb presented Council with a year-in-review update for the Little 
Bear East facility and recreation programs.  Manager Lamb also identified goals and new 
programs for 2024. 
 
D.  RESOLUTION 24-02 DISSOLUTION OF ST. IGNACE AREA EMS COUNCIL 
 

RESOLUTION 24-02 TO APPROVE THE DISSOLUTION OF THE ST. IGNACE AREA EMS 
COUNCIL AND OTHER MATTERS 

The following Resolution 24-02 was offered for adoption by Mayor Pro-Tem Gustafson, 
supported by Councilmember Shepard: 
 
WHEREAS, the St. Ignace Area EMS Council was established by the City of St. Ignace, Moran 
Township, St. Ignace Township, Brevort Township, Hendricks Township and Trout Lake 
Township (“Establishing Municipalities”) in April of 2020 pursuant to an Interlocal Agreement 
authorized under the Michigan Urban Cooperation Act of 1967; and 
 
WHEREAS, the purpose of the St. Ignace Area EMS Council was to provide advanced life 
support ambulance service to residents and visitors in the Establishing Municipalities; and 
 
WHEREAS, in 2022 the Establishing Municipalities created a superseding entity knows as the 
Straits Area EMS Authority; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of St. Ignace believes the purpose of the St. Ignace Area EMS Council has 
been met and is no longer needed in light of the establishment of the Straits Area EMS 
Authority; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of St. Ignace wishes to dissolve the St. Ignace Area EMS Council and to 
transfer all assets and liabilities of the St. Ignace Area EMS Council to the Straits Area EMS 
Authority. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of St. Ignace approves 
the transfer all assets and liabilities of the St. Ignace Area EMS Council to the Straits Area EMS 
Authority. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of St. Ignace approves the 
dissolution the St. Ignace Area EMS Council pursuant to the Interlocal Agreement that 
established the St. Ignace Area EMS Council. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 



Yes:  Councilmembers Shepard, Williford, Eyre, Mayor Pro-Tem Gustafson and Mayor  
         LaLonde. 
No:  None. 
Absent:  Councilmembers Litzner and Pelter. 
Resolution declared Adopted. 
 
E.  COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 
 
Mayor LaLonde requested Council approval for several appointments as follows: 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Williford, seconded by Councilmember Eyre, to approve 
appointing the following to the Board of Review: 
Ed Paquin through 12/2027 to replace Tammy Shepard; Charlotte Doud through 12/2028 to 
replace Heather Tamlyn; and Cindy Oliver through 12/2029 to replace Jessica Sayles. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Mayor Pro-Tem Gustafson, seconded by Councilmember Williford, to approve 
re-appointing Ed Paquin and Emily Fullerton to the Recreation Advisory Committee through 
12/2025.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Mayor Pro-Tem Gustafson, seconded by Councilmember Eyre, to approve 
appointing Councilmember Litzner and Mayor LaLonde to the Street Committee through 
12/2025.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Mayor Pro-Tem Gustafson, seconded by Councilmember Shepard, to approve 
appointing Luke Paquin to the Zoning Board of Appeals through 12/2026.   
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Shepard, seconded by Councilmember Eyre, to approve  
re-appointing Councilmember Williford, Mayor Pro-Tem Gustafson and Mayor LaLonde to the 
Negotiations Committee through 12/2025.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Mayor Pro-Tem Gustafson, seconded by Councilmember Eyre, to approve re-
appointing Julie Lipnitz and Heather Aukeman to the DDA Board through 12/2027. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Mayor Pro-Tem Gustafson, seconded by Councilmember Williford, to approve 
appointing Andy Valentine to the Planning Commission through 12/2026.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Mayor Pro-Tem Gustafson, seconded by Councilmember Eyre, to approve re-
appointing Greg Cheeseman Jr., Fred Feleppa and City Clerk/Treasurer Insley to the Election 
Commission through 12/2025.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF BILLS 
 

Airgas Rental Gases $35.45 

Amazon December 2023 Statement $531.39 



Arrow Signs SIFD-SUV Lettering & Decals $960.00 

Automatic Door Service LBE - Door Repair $550.00 

BAM Tools Water Plant/DPW Tools $741.20 

BC Pizza LBE-Fab Friday Pizza $118.50 

Belonga Excavating, LLC 
Sand-Cemetery, Garage Stock/WWTR 
Repair $344.38 

Charles Palmer, P.C. December 2023 Statement $3,696.24 

CivicPlus Annual Website Fee $2,800.00 

Culture Code NAGPRA Host/Maintenance Fee-Split $600.00 

Election Source 
Annual Maintenance Contract Per State 
Contract $615.00 

Galls Uniform Boots-A. Mitchell $151.91 

George's Body Shop 2021 SIPD Repair/WTR Crown Vic Repair $7,257.50 

Gordon Food Service LBE Concession $890.25 

HACH Water Plant Supplies $3,028.00 

Hawkins Water Plant Supplies $1,833.59 

Hydrite Bulk Ferric Chloride $13,210.14 

Johnson Controls LBE Repair $448.80 

Kimball Midwest Water Plant Supplies $249.98 

KSS LBE Supplies $380.70 

Mackinac County 911 SIPD Radio Batteries $116.00 

Mark’s Tire WTR-Tires for Explorer $755.12 

Meyer Ace Hardware December 2023 Statement $847.96 

MI Assoc. of Municipal 
Clerks 

2024 Memberships-A Insley, S. Cece, K. 
Labinski $225.00 

MI Dept of EGLE M. Bowlby-WTR Plant Virtual Class $45.00 

MI Dept of EGLE NPDES Annual Fees 2024 $5,650.00 



MMRMA  2024 Insurance $58,030.00 

MMTA Virtual Workshop-A. Insley $149.00 

MMTA 2024 Membership-A Insley $99.00 

Modern Marketing SIPD Supplies $521.94 

Moran Township Winter 2023 Taxes $123.47 

National Office Product December 2023 Statement $588.09 

NCL RRI-WTR Lab Equipment $924.24 

Otis Envelope 2024 Maintenance Service $1,563.36 

Quill Office Supplies/Supplies $403.29 

Safety-Kleen Systems Washer Solvent $175.78 

Seewald's Towing SIPD-Tow $85.00 

Spartan Nash December 2023 Statement $149.04 

St. Ignace Auto WWTR Green Generator Air Filter $77.24 

St. Ignace True Value December 2023 Statement $512.26 

Straits Building Center December 2023 Statement $156.81 

The St. Ignace News December 2023 Statement $414.00 

Uline Water Plant Office Equipment $441.45 

UP Solar and Electric LLC LBE- Panel and Install $268.00 

    

  $110,764.08 
 
Mayor LaLonde inquired about the invoice from Mark’s Tire for the purchase of tires for the 
Water Department’s meter vehicle. It was moved by Mayor Pro-Tem Gustafson, seconded by 
Councilmember Shepard, to approve paying the bills in the amount of $110,764.08 as 
presented. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:  Councilmembers Williford, Eyre, Mayor Pro-Tem Gustafson, Mayor LaLonde and  
         Councilmember Shepard. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 



PUBLIC COMMENT (3 min limit) 
Public comment was received regarding Little Bear East Community Center. 
 
MANAGEMENT REPORT 
City Manager Marshall provided a written report to Council, as well as discussed the following: 
- Training workshop planned with the Michigan Municipal Executives January 29th and 30th. 
- Zoning Administrator certification scheduled for February 8th and 9th in Mt. Pleasant. 
- Invited Councilmembers to schedule a tour of the Water Plant with Russ Winberg if 

interested in the operations.  
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
No committee reports were discussed. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS 
Councilmember comments were received. 
  
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:44 p.m. 
 
 
______________________________                          ________________________________ 
       William LaLonde, Mayor                                       Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 
 



Winter Activities

2024 Fee Schedule
RECREATION

Daily Monthly Season
Open Skate 2023/2024 Free* Free* Free*
Stick & Puck 2023/2024 Free* Free* Free*
*Sponsored by Sault Tribe 2% for 2023-2024 Ice Season
Open Skate 2024/2025 $5.00 $20.00 $100.00
Stick & Puck 2024/2025 $5.00 $20.00 $100.00
Drop-In Hockey $5.00

*Sponsored by Mackinac County Round 
Table*

Fab Friday Open Skate 2023-2024 
(Includes pizza, pop, & skate)

Free* 

Fab Friday Open Skate 2024-2025 
(Includes pizza, pop, & skate) $5.00

Skates
Skate Rental $3.00
Skate Sharpening $5.00
Skate Sharpening Punch Card (6
Punches) $25.00

Snowshoe Rental $7.00/day $10.00/weekend $25.00/week

Ice Rental
Prime Time $155.00 per hour
Non-Prime Time $135.00 per hour
SIHA $135.00 per hour

Ad Boards
New Sign + 1 year Advertising $600
Existing Sign per Year $350

Hockey Tournaments Ice 
Rental
All levels excluding Mites $950.00/per Team
Mites $100.00

LBE Conference Room 
Rentals
North & South $100.00 per hr, 3 hr 

min.
Event, North & South (*includes set-
up day before and break-down day 
after) $1,000.00
North $50.00 per hr, 3 hr min
South $50.00 per hr, 3 hr min
Use of Kitchen $100.00
Arena/Ice Rink $1,500.00
Entire Facility $2,000.00
Parking Lot Only $500.00
Early Set-up $150.00
Clean-up $150.00

Room Set-up Charges
0-100 people $50.00
101-200 people $75.00
201-300 people $100.00
301-500 people $150.00

Meeting Accessories
Podium $10.00
Microphone $15.00
Large A/V Screen and Projector 50.0

DRAFT 1 17 2024



Pipe & Drape and
Table Rental

Pipe & Drape $5.00/ft.
Table Linens $10.00/ea.
Table Skirts $10.00/ea.
Damaged linens   $30.00/ea.

Food & Beverage Service
Coffee (25/50/75/100) $1.00 per cup
Water (bottled) $15.00/case
Soda (assorted) $35.00/case or 

$5.00/pitcher
Assorted Pastries $30.00/dozen
Cookies $20.00/dozen
Pizza Buffet (Pizza, salad,
breadsticks, cinnamon sticks) $15.00/person
Fitness Center
Type Daily Weekly 1-month 6-month 1-year
Resident $5.00 $25.00 $35.00 $135.00 $240.00
Non-Resident $5.00 $25.00 $40.00 $155.00 $275.00
Student or Military $5.00 $25.00 $25.00 $95.00 $170.00
Senior $5.00 $25.00 $20.00 $75.00 $120.00

LBE Overflow Lot
Overnight Parking $10.00/night

GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB
9 Holes $15.00
18 Holes $24.00

Carts $10.00 per cart/9 holes
Rental Clubs $7.00
Clubhouse Rental:
Wedding Receptions $500
Other Events: 
Under 50 people
50 to 100 people
100 or more people

$295
$395.00
$545.00

MARINA

Harbor
Transient Rates set by MI State Waterways
Commission

Dockside
$800/season,
$200/month no electric, no

water
30' Day Dockage $10.00
31' and above Dockage $15.00
Pump-out Service $20.00/tank
Non-transient Shower $6.00
Ice/7lb. Bag $4.00
Gas Market Rate
Diesel Market Rate



City of St. Ignace, MI 

Staff Report 

Agenda Date: 1/22/2024 Presenter: Nick Montie, Fire Chief 

Department: Fire Department City Manager: S. Marshall 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  2024 Volunteer Fire Capacity Grant Program 

BACKGROUND:  St. Ignace Fire Department was awarded a 50/50 matching grant through the Michigan 
Department of Natural Resources. With the grant money the department is seeking to buy an additional 
2,000 Gallon self-supported water tank for use in rural fires where tanker shuttles are needed to supply 
water for the fire. Additionally, the department is seeking to buy a Turbo-Draft Fire Educator that will be 
used to supply water to a fire truck from either a lake or river. Both pieces of equipment will benefit the 
department in response to structure fires and while working with DNR and Federal Forrest on wildland 
fires. 

FISCAL EFFECT: In total the cost of the whole project will be around $5,620.93 with a refund from the 
State of Michigan for around $2,810.46 (50/50 match grant). The department will pay the upfront bills 
for the project and submit documentation to the state to receive the matching funds from them to go 
back into the departments overall budget for the year. Funds for the purchases will come from capital 
outlay line item of the departments $10,000 budgeted.  

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION:  

See attached VFC Grant application and 3 bids for each purchase. 

RECOMMENDATION: It is my recommendation to approve the purchase and submit the required 
documentation back to the state for the necessary refund through the grant program using the 2 lowest 
bids for each piece of equipment.  

396 N State Street 
St. Ignace, MI. 49781 

cityofstignace.com 

This form and any background material must be approved by the City Manager then delivered to the 

City Manager’s Office by 4:00 PM the Thursday prior to the Council Meeting.   























BOARDS AND COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

01-22-2024

Board of Review: 

Tom Cronan – Addi�on to Commitee as Alternate 

Cemetery Commitee: 

Kharizma Labinski – Renewal 12/25 

Construc�on Board of Appeals: 
Steven Paquin – Renewal 12/24 
Rick Marshall – Renewal 12/24 
Ken Brown – Renewal 12/24 
Larry Belonga – Renewal 12/24 

Dock 3 Commitee: 

William LaLonde – Addi�on to Commitee 

Golf Course Commitee: 

William LaLonde – Renewal 12/25 

Policy Commitee: 

Andrea Insley – Renewal 12/25 

Sherry Cece – Renewal 12/25 











































City of St. Ignace 
Event Review Committee 

Friday January 12th, 2024 @ 9:30AM 
 
 

 
Present:  Scott Marshall, Bridgett Sorenson 
 
 
Pond Hockey 2024 
 
Location: TBD 
Moran Bay 
Chain Lake- Backup location 
 
Ice Safety Check 
Visitor Bureau- Kyle Brow; Precision Edge drills holes in ice in various locations to determine ice 
thickness. 
 
City Labor 
Public works gets the ice resurfacing machine ready to go for the event.  No other labor is 
needed. 
 
Police 
No extra staffing is needed.  No requests for police department. 
 
Road Closure 
None.  May need to put out some cones in front of Kiwanis Beach for shuttle drop off if Moran 
Bay is the event location. 
 
Coast Guard Permit 
Visitor Bureau is waiting on permit.  Will forward to city when they receive. 
 
Major concerns/Event Changes 
None 
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:00AM 
 

 







CITY OF ST. IGNACE 
RESOLUTION 24-01 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE LABATT BLUE ADULT U.P. POND HOCKEY 
CHAMPIONSHIPS 

The following Resolution was offered for adoption by __________________, supported by 
______________________: 

WHEREAS: The St. Ignace Visitors Bureau, in association with Labatt Blue and the St. 
Ignace Hockey Association, request permission to conduct the Labatt Blue 
U.P. Adult Pond Hockey Championship; and 

WHEREAS: This event requires the use of Kiwanis Beach, Moran Bay on Lake Huron, 
and public streets; and 

WHEREAS: Chapter 22 of the City of St. Ignace Code, “The Peddler’s Ordinance”, 
requires certain criteria be met for the event to be held; and 

WHEREAS: It is understood that there may be fees for certain services if provided by 
the City; and 

WHEREAS: The St. Ignace City Council has determined that the St. Ignace Visitors 
Bureau does meet the criteria established in the various sections of 
Chapter 22; now therefore  

BE IT RESOLVED:  The St. Ignace City Council does approve Special Events status for the 
Labatt Blue U.P. Adult Pond Hockey Championship on February 15-18, 
2024; now further 

BE IT RESOLVED: The St. Ignace City Council does approve usage of Kiwanis Beach, Moran 
Bay on Lake Huron. 

Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:   
No:   
Absent:   
Resolution declared: 

I hereby certify that the above Resolution is a true copy of a Resolution presented to the St. Ignace City 
Council for adoption at a regular meeting held Monday, January 8, 2024, at 7:00 p.m. 

____________________________________ 
bs   Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 



 CITY OF ST. IGNACE 
 RESOLUTION 24-03  

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING 2024 CITY OF ST. IGNACE NON-UNION EMPLOYEE WAGES  
 
            The following Resolution was offered for adoption by Councilmember_________________, 
supported by Councilmember _____________________: 

 
WHEREAS: The City Council of the City of St. Ignace desires to establish certain conditions 

of employment for personnel; and 
 
WHEREAS: It is the desire of the City Council to secure and retain the services of certain 

employees and to provide inducement for them to remain in such employment, 
and make possible full work productivity by assuring adequate compensation for 
certain employees; now therefore  

 
BE IT RESOLVED:  That the St. Ignace City Council does hereby approve the following employees’ 

annual wage increases, effective January 1, 2024, as indicated below: 

 
  
 

FURTHER BE IT  
RESOLVED: That the City Council does hereby agree to the terms and conditions as set forth 

in the “Contract Agreements” dated January 1, 2024 between the respective 
parties. 

 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:   
No:  None. 
Absent:  
Resolution declared Adopted. 
 
I hereby certify that the above Resolution is a true copy of a Resolution presented to the St. Ignace City 
Council for adoption at a regular meeting held Monday, January 22, 2024, at 7:00 p.m. 

          
   
____________________________________ 

bs            Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 

Employee: Current 
Wage: 

2024 Wage: 

Admin Assistant, Brooklynn Schlehuber $40,500 $41,500 

Clerk/Treasurer, Andrea Insley $51,415 $54,535 
City Manager, Scott Marshall $72,000 $73,500 

Golf Course Manager, Kurt Ney $36,500 $ TBD 
Chief of Police, Kevin James $60,000 $62,000 

Marina Director $40,000 $42,500 
Recreation Director, Cathy Lamb $47,000 $48,500 

DPW Director, William Fraser $63,533 $66,533 
Fire Chief, Nicholas Montie $19,750 $20,100 



 

           
 

        CITY OF STIGNACE 
Andrea Insley, Clerk/Treasurer 

396 N. State Street, St. Ignace, MI 49781 
Ph: 906-643-8545 option 2    |     Fx: 906-643-9393    |     ainsley@cityofstignace.com 

 

 
THE BOARD OF ELECTION COMMISSION 

Alfred Feleppa; Gregory S. Cheeseman; Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 

Presidential Primary – Tuesday, February 27, 2024 

 

ELECTION BOARD 

Laurie Steiner, Chairperson (R) 

Renee Vonderwerth (R) 

Sherry Cece (D) 

Donna LaLonde (D) 

Debra Ferguson (R) 

Mary Kay Tamlyn (R) 

Betsy Turf (D) 

Martha Sjogren (R) 

Helen Thibault (D) 

 

RECEIVING BOARD 

Renee Vonderwerth (R) 

Donna LaLonde (D) 

 

The City Clerk is authorized to make substitutions if any election inspector selected cannot serve at this 

time. 

 
City of St. Ignace is an equal opportunity employer and provide  









 

City of St. Ignace, MI 
 

Staff Report 
 

Agenda Date: 1/22/24  Presenter:  

Department:    City Manager: 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   
Fireworks 
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
4th of July Fireworks 
The initial proposed fireworks agreement was approved at the November 20th city council 
meeting.   The agreement was with the City of St. Ignace and Small Town Saturday Night 
Fireworks.   It included all visitor bureau fireworks and city of St. Ignace 4th of July 
Fireworks.  The Visitor Bureau would then reimburse the city for any VB fireworks and 
would also donate $4000 to the 4th of July Fireworks.  Visitor Bureau is now working with 
Small Town Saturday Night Fireworks directly and signing an agreement for all fireworks 
including 4th of July Fireworks as they believe this makes more sense for many reasons 
including financial.  City of St. Ignace would then pay visitor bureau $5000 for 4th of July 
fireworks.  Cost of 4th of July fireworks is $9000.  I asked Visitor Bureau to donate $4000 to 
4th of July fireworks to continue with the same quality of show as in recent years in which 
case is mutually beneficial.  In conclusion, instead of City of St. Ignace signing an agreement 
for 4th of July and VB fireworks and VB reimbursing the city, the VB is signing the contract 
and the city is reimbursing the VB $5000 for 4th of July Fireworks.   
 
 
FISCAL EFFECT: 
Zero financial impact.  
 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION:   
N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Visitor Bureau pays for 4th of July Fireworks, total cost $9,000.  City of St. Ignace pays $5,000 as 
budgeted.  Visitor Bureau contributes $4000 to 4th of July Fireworks.  
 

396 N State Street 
St. Ignace, MI. 49781 

cityofstignace.com 

This form and any background material must be approved by the City Manager then delivered to the 
City Manager’s Office by 4:00 PM the Thursday prior to the Council Meeting.   







 

City of St. Ignace, MI 
 

Staff Report 
 

Agenda Date: 1/22/24               Presenter: City Manager Marshall 

Department:  Budget                City Manager:   

 
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Financials December 2023 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  The City Manager reviews the prior months financials at the second Regular 
Council meeting each month.  A summary report of each fund is provided, in addition to a more 
detailed report for the General Fund 101. 
 
 
FISCAL EFFECT:  n/a 
 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION:  The Finance Report for December 2023, as well as the 
Revenue-Expense Report for General Fund 101. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   During the last quarter of 2023, Council discussed that the financial 
summary report would be provided for each fund, as it has been in the past, but in addition, the 
City Manager will select a specific fund to review in more detail.  For this review, the General 
Fund 101 was selected and a detailed Revenue-Expense report has been provided.  Please 
note that the amounts for the fiscal year-end are not final.  The City is still recording both 
expenses and revenue to 2023 that are relevant for that year through the months of January 
and February. 
 

396 N State Street 
St. Ignace, MI. 49781 
cityofstignace.com 

This form and any background material must be approved by the City Manager then delivered to the 
City Manager’s Office by 4:00 PM the Thursday prior to the Council Meeting.   



























































Airgas USA LLC DPW Rental Gas $35.45

Arrow Signs LBE Hockey Banner/Water Plant Exit Signs $487.50

Beckett & Raeder Zoning Ordinance-Planning Services $1,015.32

Belonga Plumbing and Heating Water Plant Heating System Repair $3,787.16

Blarney Castle Oil Company Wastewater Generator Fuel $487.93

BS&A Software Assessing System Annual Service $1,004.00

George's Body Shop 2014 F-350/2014 Police Interceptor Repair $2,784.12

Grainger WWTR/WWTR RRI/Line Items/Uniforms/Safety Equip $1,825.73

Harris Forms 2023 W-2/W-3 Forms and Correction forms $458.50

Hawkins Water Plant Supplies $60.00

Kimball Midwest DPW/WTR Supplies $592.90

Mackinac Ford Sales 2014 Ford F-350 Tires $726.00

Mackinac Straits Health System SIPD-Pre-Employment Medical Exam $96.00

Mark Wilk New Water Truck Lights $211.60

McKinley Design New Water Truck Bedliner $720.00

Michigan Assoc. Municipal Clerks K. Labinski-Clerk's Institute $700.00

Michigan Association of Fire Chiefs 2024 Membership $40.00

Michigan Municipal Executives S. Marshall-Winter Institute $425.00

Michigan Municipal Treasurers Assoc A. Insley Treasurer to Treasurer 2024 Bundle $99.00

Michigan State Firemen's Association 2024 Membership $75.00

MSU Extension MI Planning Guidebook/Zoning Guidebook $120.00

Napa Auto Parts December 2023 Statement $854.60

Neal's Truck Parts DPW Truck Parts $101.57

North Central Laboratories Water Lab Supplies $3,309.96

OMS Compliance SIPD-Pre-Employment Medical Test $88.00

Trojan Technologies RRI-WWTR Supplies Large Order $22,044.66

UIS Scada Repair/Install Backwash Totalizer $3,229.32

UP State Credit Union December 2023 Statement $1,461.36

USA Bluebook WWTR Lab Supplies $748.71

Wolverine Power Systems Fire Hall Generator Yearly Maintenance $675.00

$48,264.39

Invoices for Approval

Monday, January 22, 2024



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
City Council Chambers 

Monday January 22nd, 2024 
**** MANAGER’S REPORT**** 

Draft Fee Schedule Draft 
Recreation Advisory Committee and Recreation Director discussed 2024 fee schedule at 
the January 10th Recreation Board Meeting.  Their proposal is attached.  I met with Kurt 
Ney on January 17th and discussed the 2024 fee schedule.  Marina and Golf Course 
reviewed their current fees and would like to keep the fees the same for 2024.  We recently 
received the water rate study.  I will meet with staff to review the rate study to form a 
recommendation to bring to the utility committee.  
 
Fire Department Grant 
Fire Chief Montie received DNR Grant for educator pump (assists in pulling water from 
lakes, pools, or rivers) and portable water holding tank.  It is a 50/50 match.  Chief Montie 
has $15,000 in his CIP budget for 2024.  Chief Montie is unable to attend council meeting 
due to work schedule.  Chief Montie attended the department head meeting on January 
18th, 2024 and explained the need for the pump and holding tank.  The pump and holding 
tank will assist the fire department in rural areas.   

Michigan Municipal Executive (City Manager) Training in Lansing 
Requesting permission to attend MME training in Lansing.  $425 for members.  Dates of 
workshop Jan 29-Feb 1st.  I am interested in the agenda items for January 30th and January 
31st, specifically strategies for health insurance, emergency response and employee 
retention.   

Pond Hockey Resolution 
Council requested to have city Event Review Committee to meet with Visitor Bureau Event 
Committee and key services prior and after special events.  I met with Visitor Bureau Event 
Committee for pond hockey event on behalf of the city committee for this event and will 
have city committee meet for future events.  Location TBD.  Chain Lake is the back-up 
location.  No extra police staffing is needed.  The only city labor needed is to get ice 
resurfacing machine ready for event. 

Non-Union Pay Resolution 
Met with Andrea Insley, Billy Fraser, Joe Stearns and Kurt Ney to discuss contract wage 
reopeners for January 1st, 2024.  Their contracts expire December 31st, 2024. Keeping with 
the intention of $1.50 per hour for all employees.  I recommend $1.50 per hour for these 
wage reopeners.  $1.50 per hour x 2080 hrs = $3120 for Andrea Insley and Billy Fraser.   
$2500 for Marina Director Joe Stearns with full time seasonal responsibility and part-time 



off-season responsibilities.  $2,000 for Golf Course Manager Kurt Ney.  All aforementioned 
employees are satisfied and appreciate the proposed raise.   

Financing Water Truck 
Public Works Superintendent Fraser received 2 bids for financing.  I recommend going with 
the low bid from First National Bank of 5.875%.  Water pickup truck purchase was 
approved at September 5th, 2023 city council meeting. 

4th of July Fireworks 
The initial proposed fireworks agreement was approved at the November 20th city council 
meeting.   The agreement was with the City of St. Ignace and Small-Town Saturday Night 
Fireworks.   It included all visitor bureau fireworks and city of St. Ignace 4th of July 
Fireworks.  The Visitor Bureau would then reimburse the city for any VB fireworks and 
would also donate $4000 to the 4th of July Fireworks.  Visitor Bureau is now working with 
Small Town Saturday Night Fireworks directly and signing an agreement for all fireworks 
including 4th of July Fireworks as they believe this makes more sense for many reasons 
including financial.  City of St. Ignace would then pay visitor bureau $5000 for 4th of July 
fireworks.  Cost of 4th of July fireworks is $9000.  I asked Visitor Bureau to donate $4000 to 
4th of July fireworks to continue with the same quality of show as in recent years in which 
case is mutually beneficial.  So, in conclusion, instead of City of St. Ignace signing an 
agreement for 4th of July and VB fireworks and VB reimbursing the city, the VB is signing 
the contract and the city is reimbursing the VB $5000 for 4th of July Fireworks.   
 
Treasurer Support Agreement 
Andrea Insley is requesting support for bank statement reconciliation training and 
assistance with the chart of account change-over.  Andrea budgeted $5000 for this expense 
and talked about it at various budget work sessions and meetings with city manager. 
Andrea is requesting support from former clerk/treasurer Renee Vonderwerth.  Renee has 
assisted in the past.  I recommend and appreciate Renee’s assistance.  Renee is a valuable 
resource. 

Street Committee 
The street committee met on January 17th, 2024 to review the 2024 road construction 
budget, fund balance and potential roads for new paving projects.  Next meeting February 
14th, 2024. 

MML Training in St. Ignace 
Ray Anderson from MML will be in St. Ignace February 6th, 2024 for training.  This training 
is usually online or at a specific location.  I asked Ray if he would be willing to come to St. 
Ignace and he agreed. There will be city staff and city manager training at 3pm and city 



manager and council training at 6:30pm. I am very excited as I know this will be very 
beneficial for myself.   

Health Insurance 
The City of St. Ignace received a proposal for health insurance from 44 North out of 
Marquette but headquartered in Cadillac.  44 North presented their proposal at the finance 
committee meeting January 15th, 2024.  I will be following up on 44 North references that 
they provided and follow up with current provider to compare current plan and 44 North’s 
plan.   

Michigan Municipal Risk Management Association Renewal 
I met with MMRMA representative Matt Coulson on January 16th, 2024 to discuss the city’s 
membership and renewal.  The city’s renewal date is July 1st, 2024.  Matt reminded me that 
MMRMA covers a lot of employee training if the training supports risk reduction or 
management.   MMRMA covers 75% of approved training.  I have a 2-day zoning 
administrator certification class in Mt. Pleasant.  Matt said this class is eligible for 
reimbursement.  

 



Annual Report for 2023, St. Ignace Planning Commission submitted January, 2024 
 
 
 
1.  Introduction: 
The general purpose of the St. Ignace Planning Commission is to guide and promote 
the efficient, coordinated development of the city in a manner which will best promote 
the health, safety, and welfare of its people; preserve and protect the city and its natural 
resources; and to address the goals and recommendations of the Master Plan.  Our 
mandated duties include 
 
a.  to review, conduct hearings, update and recommend amendments to the St. Ignace 

Zoning Ordinance to the City Council.   
b. to assist the City Council by reviewing and updating the Master Plan 
c. to prepare an annual report to the City Council 
d. to Review and take action, or recommend appropriate actions to City Council on 

rezoning, site plan, special land use, and planned unit development requests 
e. to attend training sessions, conferences, or meetings as needed to properly fulfill the 

duties of commissioner, and for which appropriations of funds have been approved 
by the City Council, as needed 

f. to perform other duties and responsibilities as may be requested by the City Council 
g. to conduct such site visits as deemed necessary to evaluate the application (see “d” 

above) and supporting material.  (Site visits shall be conducted individually unless 
otherwise scheduled by the commission, obeying all requirements of the Open 
Meetings Act.) 

 
2.  Purpose of this report 

• This yearly report is mandated by the Michigan Planning Enabling Act:  
“A planning commission shall make an annual written report to the legislative 
body concerning its operations and the status of planning activities, including 
recommendations regarding actions by the legislative body related to 
planning and development.” 

• We hope that it increases information-sharing between staff, boards, 
commission and the governing body 

• Allows for anticipation of upcoming issues and priorities, in order to prepare 
and budget, if necessary 

• The chair takes this opportunity to thank commissioners for their dedication 
and time commitment to complete the update on the City’s Master Plan 

 

3. Membership (year term ends) 

List of current PC members contact information and date of term end: 



• Betsy Dayrell-Hart (Chairperson) – (906) 984-2125  12/2026 

• Jim Draze (Vice-Chairperson) – (231) 301-2149  12/2025 

• Thomas Cronan (Secretary) – (615) 818-8535   12/2026 

• Mike Williford (Council Representative) – (517) 505-2616 12/2026 

• Charlotte Doud – (214) 727-5167    12/2024 

• Rick Perry – (906) 298-0364     12/2024 

• Andy Valentine – (906) 298-1668.                                         12/2026 

Commissioners who served during the 2023 calendar year who resigned during this 
term: 

Cindy Snyder (replaced by Andy Valentine) 

Rachel Conant (replaced by Thomas Cronan) 

Members of the Public serving on the zoning update steering committee:  Cheryl 
Schlehuber, Luke Paquin 

The Planning Commission gratefully acknowledges the help and support of City Staff 
and Administrators, especially Clerk/Treasurer Andrea Insley and her staff, Manager 
Scott Marshall, Assistant to the Manager Brooklynn Schlehuber, DPW chief Bill Fraser, 
Building Inspector Brian Olsen, Assessor Nick Couture, Police Chief Kevin James, Fire 
Chief Nick Monte, Marina Manager Joe Stearns, Golf Course manager Kurt Ney, St. 
Ignace Librarian Sharon Crotser-Toy , Recreation Department manager Cathy Lamb, 
and many other employees and staff who contribute to our knowledge and 
understanding of the operations and in the City of St. Ignace 

4.  Meetings:  The City of St. Ignace Planning Commission met 12 times for regular 
business meetings, and held additional workshop sessions as needed. This meets the 
requirements of the MPEA 

5.  Master Plan Review:  The Master Plan 2019-2039 is under review.  The Action Plan 
for 2020-2039 is under review, beginning December 2023 and recommended changes 
are listed as an attachment.  During the 2024 calendar year, the text, tables, and maps 
in the master plan will be reviewed (5-year review) and changes/updates will be 
recommended.   

6.  Zoning ordinance amendments:   

The zoning code is under review to meet the requirements of the Master Plan action 
plan with respect to encouraging housing development.   

Development Reviews and Rezoning Requests:  There was one rezoning request, for 
private property owned by Mr. George Jappaya parcel 052-140-009-60, to be rezoned 
from R2 to R3.  A preliminary envisioning drawing and document accompanied the 
request. After a public hearing the PC voted to recommend rezoning.   



7.  Development reviews (formal) none submitted 

8.  Variances none requested of the PC (please see ZBA report for variances issued) 

9.  Actions by legislative body 

 No new ordinances were submitted to council.  Following the rezoning hearing for 
parcel 052-140-009-60, council voted to approve rezoning to R3. 

10.  Zoning Map The following changes were made to the zoning map:  Rezoning of 
parcel 52-140-009-60 to R3,  

11.  Trainings attended: Our commissioners bring a variety of skills and breadth of 
knowledge to the Planning Commission.  We read widely on subjects of interest in 
planning and zoning and attend meetings and training sessions the pertain to our work.   
This is not a comprehensive list.  We are dedicated to continuing education for the 
benefit of the community. 

Commissioner Date (s) Subject/ # of hours Host 

Perry, Dayrell-Hart, 
Doud, Draze 

1/25, 2/1, 2/8, 2/15  2 hr per session, 
Housing in 4 Parts 

Michigan Association of 
Planning (MAP) 

Dayrell-Hart quarterly Master Citizen Planner 
Cohort, 1.5 hr on line 
discussion group, 
problems and solutions 

MSU, Bradley 
Newmann 

Dayrell-Hart 2-3 meetings per year MEDC Advisory 
Council, various topics 
in development 

MEDC Pablo Majano 

Dayrell-Hart 5/23 Dealing with the 
challenge of economic 
uncertainty 1 hr 

MSU Bradley Newmann 
et al 

Dayrell-Hart 11/20, 12/5 RCPI Resilient Costal 
Projects Initiative 1 hr 
sessions 

Zoë Goodrow  Coastal 
Programs Manager 
Great Lakes and St. 
Lawrence Cities Initiative 

Draze 7/23 Updates, grants and 
funding for municipal 
projects 2 hr 

MML regional meeting 

Valentine Ongoing reading 
independent study 

Planning and Zoning 
Essentials 

MSU/MAP texts 

Cronan 3 of 4 quarterly sessions 
in 2023 

3 Regional Planning 
Group 
discussion/Regional 
cooperation topics 
iincluding solid waste, 
recycling, broadband 
access,  

EUP Regional Planning 
Group 



Commissioner Date (s) Subject/ # of hours Host 

Dayrell-Hart 11/3/24 Webinar workforce 
housing, recorded 11/3, 
1.5 hr (Series Critical 
Conversations in 
Michigan) 

MSU, Bradley 
Newmann and William 
Cronin 

Williford, Draze, Cronan 10/23 Housing Event, 
methodology for 
financing housing 2 hr 

Organizer City Manager 
Marshall, host INVEST-
UP 

Perry 2023, independent 
study over the year 

Health/safety/welfare 7 
hr.  Building codes, 
updates for architecture, 
guidelines 2 hr 

American Institute of 
Architects 

    

 

 

 
12. Joint meetings: One or more Planning Commissioners attended meetings of the 
St. Ignace City Council, DDA, Recreation Committee, Dock 3 committee, CIP sessions, 
Budget workshops, Streets Committee, and others as available. 
 
13.  Commissioners priorities for 2021 are first to complete the update of the 
zoning ordinance (in progress, together with Beckett-Raeder) and to match the 
zoning ordinance and the goals set out in the 2019-2039 Master Plan, with 5-year 
review in progress in 2023.    The Planning Commission goals consistent with these 
priorities are to 
a.  promote economic development and good governance,  
b.  make a zoning ordinance that promotes development of housing within the City 
especially for our work force,  
 
c.  continue to observe best practices for training and coordination among boards and 
commissions 
 
d.  to preserve and protect our natural and built environment 
 
e. to fulfill our responsibility to protect health, safety and welfare for all St. Ignace 
citizens.  
This report has been approved by the St. Ignace Planning Commission on 1/9/23 and is 
respectfully submitted to the St. Ignace City Council 1/22/24 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
 
Betsy Dayrell-Hart, Chair 
 


	01 Agenda 1-22-24
	07 1 8 24 Unofficial Council min
	8a 2024 Fee Schedule Draft
	8b Staff Report_Fire Department
	8b Staff Report_Fire Department
	8b fire
	8b fire doc
	Blank Page

	8c Boards and Committee Appt
	8d City Manager MME Training
	8e Staff Report Clerk Training
	8e Staff Report Clerk Training
	8e Staff Report Clerk Training_Support
	Blank Page

	8f Resolution 24-01 Pond Hockey
	8f Pond Hockey App
	8f Resolution 24-01 Pond Hockey
	8f Resolution 24-01 Pond Hockey
	Event Review Committee_Pond Hockey 2024

	8f Coast Guard

	8f Pond Hockey Ins
	8f Resolution 24-01 Pond Hockey
	8f Resolution 24-01 Pond Hockey
	Resolution 24-01 Pond Hockey



	8g Resolution 24-03 Non Union Pay
	8h Election Board Approval
	8i Financing Water Department Truck
	Loader_1
	Loader1

	8j 4th of July Fireworks
	8k Treasuer Support Agreement 2024
	8l Financials - Dec 2023
	Staff Report - Dec 2023 Financials
	Financials Dec 2023.pdf
	RevExp Fund 101 Dec 2023.pdf

	09 Council Bills List
	11 CM Report 1-22-24
	12 PC Committee Report
	This yearly report is mandated by the Michigan Planning Enabling Act:  “A planning commission shall make an annual written report to the legislative body concerning its operations and the status of planning activities, including recommendations rega...
	We hope that it increases information-sharing between staff, boards, commission and the governing body
	Allows for anticipation of upcoming issues and priorities, in order to prepare and budget, if necessary
	The chair takes this opportunity to thank commissioners for their dedication and time commitment to complete the update on the City’s Master Plan
	3. Membership (year term ends)
	List of current PC members contact information and date of term end:
	• Betsy Dayrell-Hart (Chairperson) – (906) 984-2125  12/2026
	• Jim Draze (Vice-Chairperson) – (231) 301-2149  12/2025
	• Thomas Cronan (Secretary) – (615) 818-8535   12/2026
	• Mike Williford (Council Representative) – (517) 505-2616 12/2026
	• Charlotte Doud – (214) 727-5167    12/2024
	• Rick Perry – (906) 298-0364     12/2024
	• Andy Valentine – (906) 298-1668.                                         12/2026
	Commissioners who served during the 2023 calendar year who resigned during this term:
	Cindy Snyder (replaced by Andy Valentine)
	Rachel Conant (replaced by Thomas Cronan)
	Members of the Public serving on the zoning update steering committee:  Cheryl Schlehuber, Luke Paquin
	The Planning Commission gratefully acknowledges the help and support of City Staff and Administrators, especially Clerk/Treasurer Andrea Insley and her staff, Manager Scott Marshall, Assistant to the Manager Brooklynn Schlehuber, DPW chief Bill Fraser...
	4.  Meetings:  The City of St. Ignace Planning Commission met 12 times for regular business meetings, and held additional workshop sessions as needed. This meets the requirements of the MPEA
	5.  Master Plan Review:  The Master Plan 2019-2039 is under review.  The Action Plan for 2020-2039 is under review, beginning December 2023 and recommended changes are listed as an attachment.  During the 2024 calendar year, the text, tables, and maps...
	6.  Zoning ordinance amendments:
	The zoning code is under review to meet the requirements of the Master Plan action plan with respect to encouraging housing development.
	Development Reviews and Rezoning Requests:  There was one rezoning request, for private property owned by Mr. George Jappaya parcel 052-140-009-60, to be rezoned from R2 to R3.  A preliminary envisioning drawing and document accompanied the request. A...
	7.  Development reviews (formal) none submitted
	8.  Variances none requested of the PC (please see ZBA report for variances issued)
	9.  Actions by legislative body
	No new ordinances were submitted to council.  Following the rezoning hearing for parcel 052-140-009-60, council voted to approve rezoning to R3.
	10.  Zoning Map The following changes were made to the zoning map:  Rezoning of parcel 52-140-009-60 to R3,
	11.  Trainings attended: Our commissioners bring a variety of skills and breadth of knowledge to the Planning Commission.  We read widely on subjects of interest in planning and zoning and attend meetings and training sessions the pertain to our work....




